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FROM WASHINGTON 111945Z SEP 32.

TO IMMEDIATE F € O

TELEGRAM NUMBER 3014 OF 11 SEPTEMBER

INFO PRICRITY UKMIS HEW YORK.
YOUR TELEGRAM NO 1670: FALKLANDS: GEMERAL ASSEMBLY.

1. AT EAGLEBURGER'S REQUEST. MINISTER WENT OVER THIS GROUND

AGAIN WITH HIM THIS MORNING, HE REHEARSED THE ARGUMENTS

IN YOUR MESSAGE TO SHULTZ OF 3 SEPTEMBER (FCO TELEGRAM NUMBER 1615),
AND THE REASONS WHY IT WAS IMPOSSIBLE FOR HMG TO CONTEMPLATE
NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE ARGEMNTINES -IN PRESENT CIRCUMSTANCES.

HE REMINDED EAGLEBURGER THAT THROUGHOUT THE PROCESS OF DISCUSSION
WITH THE ARGENTIMNIANS, THE[R POSITION HAD BEEN THAT THE EMD

PRODUCT WOULD BE A TRANSFER OF SOVEREIGHNTY. AGAINST THIS 3ACKGROUMND
AND OF ALL THE RECENT EVENTS AND TRAUMAS, IT WAS HMG'S STRONGLY
HELD VIEW THAT IT WOULD BE IRRESPONSIBLE FOR US TO ALLOW ANYONE

TO THINK THAT NEGOTIATIONMS SETWEEN THE UK AND ARGENTINA OFFERED A
REALISTIC wWAY AHEAD FOR THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE.

2. EAGLEBURGER SAID THAT OUR POSITION AND THE REASONS FOR |T WERE
FULLY UNDERSTOOD, BUT EQUALLY HE WANTED THERE TGO BE NO
MISUNDERSTANDING ABOUT WHERE THE US STOCD.

FIRST, US REPRESENTA?T?EE_wEEE'Egz:EEZ?ThG THE BUSHES TRYING

TO GET AN ACCEPTABLE RESOLUTION TOGETHER. THEY HAD TALKED TO
THE ARGENTINTANS IN MUCH THE SAME WAY AS THEY HAD TALKED TO US.
BUT SECOND IF A RESOLUTION EMERGED AT THE UNGA WHICH D1D

NOT PREJUDGE THE SOVEREIGNTY POINT OR SEEK TO LOCK THE UK INTO
A TIME FRAME ON NEGOT{ATIONS, THE U.S. WOULD NOT OPPOSE IT.

ALL THIS WAS SOME WAY DOWN THE ROAD. IT WAS POSSIBLE THAT THE
ARGENTINIANS WOULD COME FORWARD WITH A STRONGLY WORDED RESOLUTION
WHICH NEITHER OF US COULD ACCEPT. BUT IT MIGHT TURN OUT THAT
THEY WOULD PLAY THEIR HAND MORE SENSIBLY AND THAT THE RESULT
MIGHT BE A DRAFT RESOLUTION WHICH THE US COULD HOT VOTE AGAINST
OR ABSTAIN ON, EAGLEBURGER THOUGHT IT IMPORTANT THAT THIS
SHOULD BE CLEARLY UNDERSTOOD BETWEEN US.

3« MINISTER REPLIED THAT WE UNDERSTOOD THE PRESSURE WHICH THE
AMERICANS FELT THEY WERE UNDER ON THIS ISSUE. HE WENT ON TO

DRAW ON THE USEFUL MATERIAL CONTAINED IN YOUR TELEGRAM UNDER
REFERENCE, HE SAID THAT WE WONDERED WHETHER THE AMER ICANS

WERE NOT OVER=-ESTIMATING THE SIGMIFICANCE OF THE UN DEBATE FOR
THEIR RELATIONSHIPS WITH LATIH AMERICA. OUR UNDERSTANDING WAS THAT
THE MEXICAN INITIATIVE HAD BEEN A PERSONAL ONE BY CASTANADA WHICH
D1D NOT EVEN HAYE THE WHOLEHEARTED SUPPORT OF THE MEX|CAN
GOVERNMEMT AND WE KNEW THAT SEVERAL OTHER LATIM AMERI|CAN

FORE{GN MINISTERS HAD ONLY SIGMNED UP RELUCTANTLY. MANY PEOPLE,
DURING THE FALKLANDS CRISIS ITSELF, HAD OVER-ESTIMATED THE

DEGREE OF FALLOUT IN TERMS OF RELATIONS WITH LATIN AMERICAN
COUNTRIES GENERALLY. DID EAGLEBURGER MNOT THIMK THAT 4
THERE wWAS A DANGER OF REPEATING THIS MISTAKE? [Lf'
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4. THOMAS THEN EXPLAINED THE LO3BYING EXERCISE 4E YERE
UNDERTAKING (YOUR TELNO. 129 TC A31DJAN) TO TRY TO OBTAIN
MDERSTANDING FROM A WIDE RANGE CF FRIENDLY GOVERMMENTS
FOR OUR POSITION, THIS WAS IM ADDITION TO MESSAGES TQ ALLIED
GOVERNMENTS ON THE LINES OF YOUR MESSAGE TO SHULTZ. IN THE COURSE
OF OUR LOBBYING EXERCISE, WE WOULD BE DEVELOPING THE SAM
ARGUMENTS AND EXPLAINING THE REASONS WHY WE WOULD OPPOSE A
RESOLUTION CALLING ON US TO NEGOTIATE WITH ARGENTINA. WE WOULD
ALSO BE POINTING OUT THE NEED FOR REAFFIRMATION OF FUNDAMENTAL
PRINCIPLES SUCH AS THE NONE USE OF FORCE AND SELF-DETERMINAT |ON.
THOMAS SAID THAT IT WOULD GRAVELY HANDICAP QUR LOBBYING EFFORTS
IF THE US WERE, IN THE MEANTIME, TELLING OTHER GOVERNEMTS THAT THEY
WOULD BE PREPARED TO VOTE FOR A RESOLUTION CALLING FOR MEGOT IATI0NS,.
HE DREW ATTEMTION IN PARTICULAR TO THE MEETING OF UM EXPERTS AT
MATO OM 13 SEPTEMBER AND SAID THAT WE HOPED THE US REPRESENTATIVE
AT THAT MEETING WOULD SAY NOTHING TO SUGGEST THAT THE US MIGHT
3E WILLING TO VOTE FOR A RESOLUTION CALLING ON US TO MEGOTIATE.
EAGLEBURGER UMDERTOOK TO PURSUE THIS POINT, HE WAS AWARE THAT WE
HAD COMPLAINED ABOUT A GENERAL TELEGRAM OF INSTRUCTIONS WHIiCH HAD
GONE OUT TO US MISSIONS ON THE UM GENERAL ASSEMBLY, THE LAST
PARAGRAPH OF WHICH HAD SET OUT THE CURRENT US VIEWS ON A
RESOLUTICN OM THE FALKLANDS. HE HAD BEEM DISPLEASED WITH THAT
GUIDANCE TELEGRAM AND WOULD TRY TO ENSURE THAT THE OFFENDING
PASSAGE WAS NOT USED. HE INTENDED TO TALK TO SHULTZ ABOUT THIS,.

5. FINALLY THOMAS MADE THE POINTS ABOUT MICROHESIA AND PUERTC RICO
SUGGESTED IN PARA 3 OF YOUR TELEGRAM UNDER REFERENCE. WE WOULD

3€ SUPPORTING THE U.S. Ol BOTH ISSUES, EVEN THOUGH WE HAD

DOUBTS ABOUT THE U.S. POSITION OM MICRONESIA, WE WOULD

TAKE IT HARD |F THEY SEPARATED FROM US ON A MATTER OF

SIMILARLY VITAL IMPORTANCE TO THE U.K, EAGLE3URGER'S RESPONSE

WAS CHARACTERISTICALLY COLORFUL, BUT HE TOOK THE POINT,.

6. EAGLEBURGER HAS SINCE TELEPHONED MINISTER TO SAY THAT

SHULTZ HAS AGREED THAT U.S. MISSIONS SHOULD BE INSTRUCTED

TO AVOID ADVERTISING THE U.S. POSITION OH A FALKLAMDS RESOLUTION,
{F ASKED, THEY WOULD HAVE TO EXPLAIN WHAT THEY WOULD DOz

BUT THEY WOULD NOT VOLUMTEER IT. AS FAR AS IT GOES, THIS IS
HELPFUL, IT WILL NOT SE EASY TO TAKE THE AMER |CANS MUCH

FURTHER IN THE DIRECTION OF OPPOSING MNEGOTIATIONS ON ANY TERMS.
I THIS CASE IT IS MOT SIMPLY THE LATINO LOBBY AT WORK. IT IS THE
AMERICAN IMSTINCT THAT |F THERE IS A DISPUTE, THE BEST WAY

TO RESOLVE IT IS BY NEGOTIATION: AND THAT

IF THERE ARE ASPECTS OF IT THAT ARE NOT MEGCTIABLE FOR ONE

SiDE OR THE OTHER, THIS 1S BEST TAKEM CARE OF IN THE TERMS CF
REFERENCE.

WRIGHT
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US POLICY IN THE FALKLANDS CRISIS WITH SOME VALEDICTORY COMMENTS

ON US/UK RELATIONS

SUMMARY

1. Purpose of the despatch is to give a personal account of the
involvement of the USA in the Falklands crisis; and to make some
valedictory comments on the USA/UK relationship in the light of
the outcome. (Paragraphs 1-3).

2 Far from exercising pressure at the end of March on the
Argentinians over their illegal landings on South Georgla, as

HMG asked them to do, the State Department counselled both
governments to exercise restraint. Lord Carrington and I protested
at this neutral stance. At thié stage, ie. until the end of the
month, neither the US intelligence community nor the JIC believed
that the Argentine landings portended any serious challenge, let
alone an invasion of the Falklands. (Paragraphs 4-8).

3 When intelligence had reached London of a clear intention to
invade the Falklands, the Prime Minister sent the President a
message on 31 March. .This asked him to intervene urgently with
President Galtieri. I saw Mr Haig on the evening of 31 March anc
gave him a summary of our intelligence. Despite scepticism from
his own staff, Mr Haig immediately saw the danger and promisec to
act forthwith to try to forestall an Argentine invasion.
(Paragﬁaphs 9-11). ;

4. When President Reagan eventually spoke to President Galtierl

/on
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on the evening of 1 April, the latter rejected his appeal and his

offer to send Vice-President Bush to Buenos Aires to assist in a
solution. On the morning of 2 April, when the invasion had 4
occurred, the State Department issued a strong condemnatory
statement. (Paragraphs 12-13).

5 The despatch then summarises the role and attitude of the
USA up to invasion. It also discusses the question whether the
previous pro-Argentine policy of the Reagan Administration had
emboldened the Argentines to invade, and whether the US Government
could have averted the invasion had they known Argentine intentions
sooner. (Paragraphs 14-15).

6. An analysis 1s given of why the US Government became so
intensely involved in negotiation: USA interests would be
threatened by military conflict between Argentina and the UK.

The Latin-lobby in the USA was influential, supported principally
by Mrs Jeane Kirkpatrick and Mr Thomas Enders. But Mr Larry
Eagleburger had no doubt about the need for the US Government to
back HMG. (Paragraphs 16-22).

7. Reasons for the neutral stance adopted by the US Government
until the end of April. (Paragraphs 23-25).

8. Assurances from Mr Halg that the US Government was not at
heart impartial and that there would be no repeat of Suez.
(Paragraphs 26-27). o

9. An account of the gap between Buenos Aires and London that
Mr Haig was ﬁrying to bridge in his shuttle, and of the weak

points he saw in the two sides. Mr Halg came to Judge the Argentines

/as

CONFIDENTIAL - ECLIPSE




as irrational and intransigent. The US Government comes out in
support of Britain on 30 April. (Paragraphs 28-33)

10. USA efforts to reach a peaceful solution become more intense
with the approach of battle. You visit Washington for a second
time. Various plans are exchanged. Other countries - Peru,
Brazil - and the UN Secretary General, become invdlved. The’
President telephones the Prime Minister twice. HMG advances
own proposals. The Argentinians continue to prevaricate. Mr
Haig becomes increasingly worrled after British troops have
relanded. He fears the consequences of Argentine military
humiliation on Latin-American opinion already whipped up at a
meeting of the Rio Treaty. (Paragraphs 34-53)

11. The ceaseless negotiations falled to produce a peaceful
settlement, but they brought advantageé for Britain. The US

decision to come down on the British side and give support was

never something that could be taken for granted; it flowed from

and was sustained by the way we handled the negotiations in

contrast to the Argentinians. Mr Haig took-us at all times into

his confidence. He was in touch with me daily. His was the
decisive influence in the US Government despite the pressure of

the pro-Latinos. He was variable and erratic but handled declsive
events in a way that was favourable to British interests. Had he
succeeded this would have made 'a great difference to him personally.
Certain conclusions can be drawn about the negotliating phase.

(Paragraphs 54-61) ,
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Despite the high degree of USA interest in the Falklands,

there was ignorance and wavering in public opinion. It was

for the Embassy to launch a major public relations
directed at press, TV and Congress, the details of ¢
which are described in the despatch. As the prospect of a bloody
battle increased, uncertainties in public opinién tended to
grow. Our campaign therefore ﬁad to be sustalned throughout tﬁe
T4 da?s. It aroused no resentment or complaint of interferilng.
(Paraéraphs 62-71) '
13. The despatch gives detalls of the practical support giVen'by
the US Government: facilities on Ascension Island, new military
equipment and missiles, communications channels, intelligence,
economic backing - without which the repossession of the Islands
would have taken longer and been more costly. (Paragraphs T2-73)
14. The nature af the US/UK relationship 1s described and what
1t meant in the Falklands crisis. (Paragraph T4-75)
15. The outcome of the crisis has been favourable to British
interests in the USA, countering long-held doubts about our
national will. It also gave emphasis to certaln current features
of American government. (Paragraphs 76-81)
16. The fillip to our relations will be subject to varlous
tensions and to the changing pattern as betwen the two sides of
the Atlantic. Pointers are given to the changlng transatlantic
balance -‘;conomic and military. (Paragraphs 82-84)
17. In conclusion, the despatch underlines the pérticular nature
of the US/UK relationship and suggests that there 1s no
incompatibility between this and membership of the EC.

(Paragraph 85)
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TELEFHCNE I (12C2) 4E2-1240

FROM THE AMEASSADOR ‘ 27 July 1982

The Rt Hon Francis Pym MC MP
Secretary of State for Forelgn

and Commonwealth Affalrs
Foreign and Commonwealth Office
London SW1

Sir,
US POLICY IN THE FALKLANDS CRISIS WITH SOME VALEDICTORY
COMMENTS ON US/UK RELATIONS

1. The policy of the USA Government in the Falklands crisis
was fluctuating, but their involvement was intense and of
cardinal importance to British interests.

2. I should like in this despatch, which will be my
valedictory one from this post, to try to describe the ups
and downs through which we travelled between the Argentine
invasion and surrender. It will not be my purpose to cover
all aspects of the operation, but only fﬁose involving the
USA which was, however, central throughout the crisis; and

my account will be personal in nature; 1t will be as I saw
it. Sir Anthony Parsons has already sent a despatch covering
the Falklands crisis ét the UN.

3. The relationship between the USA and the UK, so
difficult to define, yet so evident and important to both
countries, did, I think, considerably affect the outcome;
and, no less interesting, the outcome will, for some time

/at
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at any rate, exercise an influence on the relationship. I
wili conclude with some comments upon this.

PRELIMINARIES TO INVASION :
b, On Sunday 28 March, when the Americans were preoccupied
with E1 Salvador, Lord Carrington sent me a telegram

saying that it was now cleadr that the Argentinians had no -
intention of removing from South Georgia the group of
Argentinians whose illegal landing there had been reported
on 19 March. He asked me to deliver urgently a message tol
Mr Haig. The message gave an account of the events since
the illegal Argentine landing on South Georgla and our
attempts to resolve the problem peacefully. Lord Carrington
asked Mr Haig to consider taking the matter up with the
Argentinians. If the latter maintained that they would

not remove the men themselves and that they would resist
any attempt by the British to do so, the use of a third
country's ship might be a compromlse they could accept.
Lord Carrington concluded by saying "If we do not find a
solution soon, I fear the gravest consequences". |

5. The following day Mr Stoessel, the Deputy Secretary of
State in the State Department, asked me to see him. He
said that he would also be sending for the Argentine
Ambassador and would be speaking to him on similar lines.
His purpose was to counsel both the British and Argentine

governments to exercise restraint. Mr Stoessel said that

the US would not take sides.
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" My immediate response was to protest. The Americans
could surely not be neutral in a case of 1llegal occupation
of sovereign British territory. They would not accept Ehe
illegal occupation of thelir own territory; they should not
condone such a thing happening in the American continent.
Te As soon as he receive§ my account of this‘conversatiqn,
Lord Carrington spoke on the same lines to Mr Ed Streator
oé the US Embassy; and I followed it by calling on Judge
Clark at the White House on the morning of 30 March. I
left him in no doubt what we thought about a neutral stance
by America when the Argentinians appeared to be occupying
our territory. After all, we had helped the Americans in
many ways that were not always to our advantage.

B It should be noted, as a matter of historical fact,
that when, on 19 March, it was first reported that the
Argentinians had landed on South Georgla, and indeed for

s ome tweive days after that, the US intelligence community

did not believe, any more than did the JIC in London, that this

portended any serious challenge by the Argentinians, let

alone an invasion of the Falkland Islands.

9. It therefore came as a shock here when it was realised
that an Argentine assault on the Falkland Islands was
imminent. When intelligence had reached London clearly
indicating an Argentine intention to invade phe Falkland
Islands themselves, the Prime Mipister sent a message to
President Reagan on Wednesday 31 March leaving him in no
doubt about the seriousness of the situation. She saild

/that
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that "we could not acquliesce in any Argentine occupation".
She asked the President to speak urgentiy to the Argentine
President asking him for an immediate assurance that he’
would not authorise any landing, let alone any hostilities.
At 1845 (local time) the same day, I saw Mr Haig on
instructions and referred to the Prime Minister's message
to the President. I went ;n to give him an account in ‘
some detail of the military threat to the Falkland Islands,
outlining some of the intelligence upon which our fears
about Argentine intentions were based. I also mentioned
the negative response we had had from the Argentine Forelgn
Minister to the strong efforts we had made to discuss a
diplomatic solution to the South Georgia issue. I gave Mr
‘Haig a plece of paper setting out -the evidence we had that
pointed categorically to an Argentine intention to invade
on the morning of 2 April.

10. Mr Haig's reaction to the information I had given him
was electric. He said that he had not been vouchsafed by
his own staff intelligence of the kind I had given him. On
the basis of my information, it was obvious that the most
urgent action was necessary. Later in London he told the
Prime Minister that the summary of intelligence I had
handed him that day was much better than anything that the

US authorities had compiled. The latter had had the various

pieces of intelligence but had not put them together to

make the whole picture.
11. It is interesting to recall that the Assistant Secretary

/for
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for Latin American Affairs in The State Department, Mr Thomas
Endprs, who was also present at this meeting, aid his best

to minimise the reality of the threat to which I had drawn
attention. He said that the US Government had had an 5
assurance from the Argentine Forelgn Minister that the
Argentinians were not contemplating confrontation with usj;

iqdeed they had had this assurance confirmed. .I pointed

odt that the movements of the Argentine fleet refuted what

he was saying. Mr Enders spoke of the help the Argentinians
had given the Americans in El Salvador. But Mr Halg
immediately saw the danger. There was no question about

the need to support the Britilsh in the effort to stop the

use of Argentine force. He would take the matter up urgently
with the Argentinians. He undertook to do everything to
ensure that President Reagan sent off a message to the
Argentine President forthwith.

12. The next day, 1 April, the US Ambassador in Buenos

Aires transmitted a message from President Reagan to
President Galtieri, but the latter would‘not say what the
Argentinlians were going to do. He muttered some mumbo-jumbo,
to use the State Department's phrase, about the need for

the British to talk about relinquishing sovereignty. It

was therefore decided that the Presldent should telephone

President Galtieri. Unfortunately he had to undergo a

medical check-up during the day and 1t was not until the

evening that he was able to ring President Galtieril. At
first the latter refused to take the call. The Americans

/persisted
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persisted and President Reagan eventually spoke to him.

His words and tone were forceful, urging the Argentiniéns
not to take action against the Falklands. He left President
Galtieri in no doubt of the consequences of such action ‘

upon Argentine/US relations. He said that the British

would treat it as a casus belli. The Americans were ready
to provide good offices to-help in any way. Hé was :
prepared to send Vice President Bush immediately to Buenocs
Aires to assist in a solution. But the Argentine President
rejected everything. He said that there was no point in
sending the Vice President when this was a matter of
colonialism. .

13. It was about 2200 hours when Mr Haig reported all this
to me. Vice President Bush happened to be dining with me
that evening, and he had expected to have to leave the
table early to fly off to Buenos Aires; but I was now able
to tell him that President Galtlerl would not receive him.
Mr Haig also told me that the President and he were ready
to do anything that we might want them to do in these very
dangerous circumstances, but it looked to the Americans as
though the Argentinians were bent on an invasion and
nothing would stop them. After telephoning the Prime

Minister and telling her of President Galtieri's negative

LV
response, 1 spoke to Mr Halg again expressing gratitude

for US support and urging the US to come out with a strong
condemnation of the Argentine attlon if, as looked
inevitable, they were golng to go through with their

/invasion
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invasion the following morning. In fact the White House
came out with a weasely statement early on the morning of
2 April, upon which the State Department, apologlising tﬁat
the White House spokesman had been inadequately prepared,‘
made clear the US stance. This was to deplore the use of
force to resolve the dispute and to call on Argentina
{mmediately to cease hostilities and to withdraw its military
forces from the Falkland Islands.

14, So far then - that is to say up to the time of the
invasion - the role of the USA in the Falklands issue can
be summarised as follows:

(1) the US Government had been unaware of the imminence
of an Argentine invasion of the Falklands until we
proddced clear evidence about it on the evening of
Wednesday 31 March.

As soon as Mr Haig was made aware of this he moved
quickly to try to avert an Argentine 1invaslon. He
sent instructions to the US Ambassador in Buenos
Aires. President Reagan made étrenuous efforts to
warn President Galtieri of the consequences of
invasion and to dissuade him from doing sc.
Despite these efforts the US Government were
extremely céreful at the outset of th?Jcrisis,

when it flared up over South Georgla, to adopt a

neutral stance on the merits of the issue as

between the British and the Argentinians. They

were afraid of the impact of the crisis on relations

/between
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between the US Government and the countrles of
Latin America and of the possible increase 1in

Soviet influence.

15. Two questions arise:

(a)

Did the US Government by thelr pro—Argentine policy
in the preceding months encourage the Argentinians
to conclude that they could get away with aggression
against the Falkland Islands without incurring
American hostility? Mrs Jeane Kirkpatrick and

Mr Thomas Enders had private talks with the
Argentinians, and the latter visited Buenos Aires

at this time. It is relevant that Mr William Casey,
the head of the CIA, who was closely concerned in
Cabinet discussion on this subject has implied to
us privately that he thinks the Argentinlans ﬁay
well have been led up the wrong path: that they may
have believed that their support for the USA In
covert operations in Central America was more
important to the USA than in fact it was and could
be expected to earn them American acquiescence 1n a
forward policy elsewhere. The Argentine military
representative in Washington, General Miguel Gil,

is known by'the US Government to have advised Buenos
Aires that Argentine backing for US an%i—communist
causes throughout Latin America would secure US

acquiescence in Argehtina's objectives. The fact

that the US Chief of Naval Staff arrived for a long

/planned
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planned visit to Buenos Aires on 2 April illustrates
the efforts the US Administration were making to
get alongside the Argentine military. HMr Haié,
I might interject, came to be convinced of Mr
Costa Mendez's evil and influential role
throughout: his personal involvement in the
decision to invade and his misreading of both
the US and UK reactions to invasion.

What can be said even in the absence of
hard Argentine evidence, 1s that Buenos Aires
might well have thought that the US Government
was in such need of Argentine support in thelir
crusade against communism in Central America that
they might condone Argentine action that previous
US Administrations would have denounced.
Could the US Government, if they had been aware
sooner of the Argentine intention to invade the
Falklands, have exerted sufficient influence to
deter them from doing so? Again, it is impossible
now to give a categorical answer, but by the time

the Americans did start to try in earnest to avert

an invasion, it was very late for the

Argentinians to take a‘decision to turn back, even
if President Galtieri had wanted to do so.
NEGOTIATIONS

The First Rounds

16. I attach at Annex A a chronology of the main events in

he
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the crisis, seen from Washington; and at Annex B a detailed
account of the negotiations and American initiatives which
continued in one form or another until the Argentine |
surrender on 14 June.

17. Security Council Resolution 502, passed on 3 April by
ten votes to one, though ignored by the Argentinians, was _
the starting-point for the negotiations. This Resolution
demanded a ceasefire and the withdrawal of Argentine forces;
it also called upon'Argentina and the UK to seek a diplomatic
solution to their differences.

18. The US Government voted for this Resolution but they
were very careful to do nothing throughout the month of

April that might be taken as reflectling on thelr impartialily
and hence as impairing their role as a negotiator seeking a
peaceful settlement between two sides. It was to bring

about some agreement between Buenos Aires and London that
could avert further military conflict that Mr Halg's efforts
were almost exclusively devoted throughogt the month and
indeed through much of the next. He believed that if the
British had to resort to military force to retake the

Islands, this would involve considerable risks and heavy

loss of life. At the outset, the US Government were afraid

that we might get into military difficulties which could

embroil the USA further than they wanted. It is worth recalling
thlis because some seven weeks igter, when we established a

force successfully on the Falklands, the Americans came to

worry, not that we would get into a military lmpasse, but

/that
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that we would succeed so overwhelmingly as to humiliate

the Argentinians. The Americans ﬁere always worried about

a pﬁssible increase of Soviet or Peronist influence 1in
Argentina and about the enhancement of Soviet influence
throughout Latin America. They were concerned too that

any overt tilt towards the UK would jeopardise Us

interests in Latin America‘and, to be sure, oncé they aid
plump for us they became as much the target for Latin
oblogquy as we did.

19. I am sure that much has been heard in London of the
influence here of the Latino-lobby. We were very m@ch

aware of them and were ready to send up chaff to deflect
their missiles, which we generally succeeded in doing except
when Mr Halg was out of the country and they selzed the
opportunity to mobilize the White House. Mr Halg frequently
assured me that, notwithstanding occasioﬁal equivocal
statements, the President himself was a staunch supporter;
some of those around him, however, were cautious and urged
him to remember above all the importance.of good

hemispheric relations.

20. The power of the Latino-lobby was minimal 1in Ccngress,
confined to pro-Irish fanatics and HEispanics in the House,
Jesse Helms in the Senate, and mavericks like Senator Stevens
who never miss a chance to get at the European members of
NATO. The main pillars of the lobby were Mrs Jeane
Kirkpatrick, US Ambassador to the UN and with Cabinet rank,

and Mr Thomas Enders in the State Department. Comparing Mrs

/Kirkpatrick
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irkpatrick with Mr Enders, 1t 1is difficult to improve on
the apophthegm going the Poundslof the State Department that
whereas the latter is more fascist than fool, Mrs Kirkpatrick
is more fool than fascist. She said publicly on TV on 11t
April that she did not see a need for the USA to make a

choice between Britain and Argentina. Nor did she think

Argentina could fairly be accused of aggression because

they were simply asserting a long-stated claim. She is

not, so I am assured, anti-British, but she has made the
intellectual discovery that authoritarian regimes are
different from totalitarian regimes, and had made Argentina
the prime exhibit in the first category. Seen from
Washington, she appears to be one of America's most reliable
own-goal scorers: tactless, wrong-headed, ineffectlve and

a dubious tribute to the academic professiou to which she
misses no opportunity of expressing her alleglance.

21. Mr Enders is a mountain of a man, with an unfailing
track record: he was notorious for his performance in
Cambodia and has been an unswerving prombter of better
relations between Washington and the right-wing dictatorships
of Latin America. From the beginning of the Falklands
crisis he pleaded loudly for Washington not to burn 1its
bridges with the Latins. He invariably tended to give the
Argentinians the benefit of the doubt and was able to exert
some influence on Mr Haig and, more especially, on the

White House. ‘

22. While mentioning personalities, I should add that

/Mr Larry
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¥Mr Larry Eagleburger, the Under Secretary in the State
Departmsnt, was consistently resolute. He was always
alive to the bearing of this issue on the health of the.
plliznce. On many occasions when, before the decision oft
30 April to back us, Us support had to be hugger-mugger,
he éid his best to help us. It was difficult to belleve
thﬁt he and Mr Enders could be operating under the same
ro$f; and indeed the roof did at times look like flying

off. We have reason to be thankful to Mr Eagleburger for

his ebullient, out-spoken support.

23. The neutral US posture shown at this stage and maintained
until the end of April was, I know, difficult for many
people to understand on the other side of the Atlantic
where it was thought that the US Government could not
Justifiably fail to stick by an ally, particularly when it
was the victim of blatant aggression; and, to be sure, this
was the instinct of much of the American public, judged by
the press and the considerable volume of mail we started
receiving in the Embassy. But the US Govérnment felt it
could not be quite sO easily committed. For one thing,
they were aware of the deep-seated psychosis in the

American people about the danger of becoming involved in

another Vietnam. To begin with, too, there seemed to be a

touch of Gilbert and Sulllvan about the idea of a military
clash 8,000 miles away in the South Atlantic on behalf of
a population of l1ess than 2,000 sheep farmers inhabiting

what the US President described as "that little ice-cold
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bunch of land down there".

24, There were other causes that made the Reagan Administration
cautious about coming down too quickly or too emphatically

on the British side. They feared the invocation of the *

Rio Treaty and a fermentation of "hemispheric solidarity"

that could result in economic sanctions against Britailn

and hostility towards the QSA. Since coming té office

they had been making great efforts to lmprove relatlions

with all regimes in Latin America, however authoritarian,
provided they were anti-Communist. As a corollary, attempts
had been made to mobilise such regimes in the fight against
the spread of Communism in Central America, a prime task

of the new Administration for which Argentina, in Washington's
eyes, was the first in the line. By some process of historical
and political adjustment, antiCommunism had c0me‘to be

tacked on to anti-colonialism as the rationale for the

most enduring of all expressions of US foreign policy, the
Monroe Doctrine. I migﬁt interpolate here that Britain's
occupation of the Falkland Islands in 1832 came a decade

after the promulgation of the Monroe Doctrine and was
considered then, as it has been ever since, as an exception
to it.

25. I argued with Mr Halg and others at the beginning

that none of this need inhibit them fromlﬁaking it bluntly
plain to the Argentinians that for the US their act of
outright aggression was entirely unacceptable and had to

be reversed before progress could be made. I tried to
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convince Mr Haig that his position would be strengthened
rather than weakened by adopting such a posture, rather
than retreating into impartiality. But the folk-lore
about Latin American psychology was too strong for this °
argument to prevail.

26. Nonetheless, Mr Halg assured us that the US was not at
heart impartial, thét HMG éad always supported the Reagan.
Administration in foreign policy, and that the US could

not privately be evenhanded in anything involving their
closest ally. But publicly thelr spokesmen said that the
United States intended to steer a course "down the middle"

and not to give any help either way. "It's a very difficult
situation for the United States", President Reagan pleaded

in answer to a press qugstion on 6 April, "because we're
friends with both of the countries engaged in this dispute...".
27. Mr Haig reassured me several times during the following
weeks that there would be no repeat of Suez. Given the
possible parallels, I do not think his assurances were

otiose. The Falklands crisis touched on-certain American
nerves that had proved sensitive at Suez: the desire to
prevent the use of force and promote a diplomatic solution;

a recessive feeling about colonialism; concern that the
British were expecting the USA eventually to pick up the
cheque; worry agdut the Russians; a desire to remain neutral
if at all possible; and the fear that what Bfitain was

doing would rally other countries in the area against

Western interests. But Mr Haig did not suffer from Dulles'

/"goodness"
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ngoodness" and, for reasons that will emerge in the following
account, Amerlcan inhibitions were overcome and there were

no Suez-reflexes.

28. 1In the course of his shuttle between London, Buenos '
Aires and Washington, Mr Haig was trying to bridge a gap

that may be described, at the risk of over—simg}ification,

as follows. The Argentinlians were not prepared to accept

any settlement that did not provide either for negotiations
on sovereignty, to be concluded in their favour within a
specific time 1imit, or for an interim regime for the
Islands, after the withdrawal of forces by both sides, that
would promote the acquisition of sovereignty by administrative
means, including population and economic transfers. The
British Government insisted that soverelgnly was theirs,

that the traditional administration of the Islands must be
restored and that there must be no infringement of the

right of the islanders ;o decide their own future. Mr Hailg

believed that the weak point in the Argentine positlon,

apart from their wrong-doing in invading the Islands, was

their emphasis upon the transfer of soverelgnty, regardless

of the wishes of the population, something that was not in
keeping with accepted principles or practice of de-colonisation
orkﬁelf-determination. The weakness of the British position,
so he believed, lay in the prospect for them of having to
contemplate a future for the Islands conducted in conflict

with neighbouring Argentina, probably involving 2a considerable

defence commitment in the South Atlantic for an indefinite

/time.
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time. What therefore Mr Haig tried to do was to bring

about some softening in the Argentine view on the transfer

of soverelgnty and some mitigation of the British contention

that there could be no discussion about the future of the‘
Islands or interim administration that advanced the prospect
for Argentine sovereignily whatever the wishes of the
islanders.

29. The bridge that Mr Halg tried to build between the
British and Argentinians varled in construction with the
changing military scene; but there were certain more or

less constant features: the withdrawal of forces; the
creation of some international interim administration

after withdrawal; and commitment by both sides to discuss
the future status of the Islands.

30. Throughout lengthy talks involving two visits by Mr
Haig to London and Buenos Aires and one each by you and

Mr Costa Mendez to Washington, HMG maintained unwaveringly
that the Argentinians had to withdraw; that any interim
administration must protect the rights of the Islanders;

and that there could be no deadline for negotiations and

no prejudgement of their outcome. But the Americans regarded
HMG's attitude to the various American 1deas as'reasonable,
particularly compared to the Argentine response. This

was, according to the US view, intransigent and unacceptable.
Mr Haig left President Galtieri in no doubt that if this
intransigence persisted the US Government would come down

on the British side.

CONFIDENTIAL - ECLIPSE




CONFPIDENTIAL - ECLIPSE

Sy |,

31. As we put it to ¥r Haig, if they could not succeed in
extorting concessicns on sovereignty the other motives of
the Argentinians in thils phase were evidently to spin oﬁt
the negotiations so as to prolong the de facto occupationl
of the Islands, to try to postpone a British landing and

to hope that, with the passage of time, Latin American and
world opinion would veer increasingly to their side. But
it ﬁould be wrong to give the impression that it was ever
quite clear what they were up to. Mr Haig described to me
the utter irrationality and chaotic nature of the Argentine
leadership. There seemed to be about 50 people involved in
the decisions, including various corps commanders. Later,
by the end of May when we were back in the Islands in
force, it came to 100k as though the junta, and the various
corps commanders who exercised great influence behind

them, would find 1t easier, glven domestic instability and

the rabble they had roused, to accept military defeat - for

which scapegoats would be found - than to agree to a diplomatic

compromise.

32, ' The Argentine reply to the US proposals worked out
after these prolonged negotiations and put to them, as to
the UK, on 27 April, amounted to a rejection; whereupon, Mr
Halg made a statement'on 30 April. Halg had been made aware
of our own reservations but, greatly to our advantage, he
turned a blind eye to these, foFussing on the categorical
objections of the Argentinians. He said that, while the

US had reasons to hope that the UK would consider settlement

/on the
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on the lines of the US proposals, Argentina had been unable

to accept them.

33. He announced various economic measures agalinst Argéntina
and, most important, he declared that the US would "respoad
positively to requests for materiel support. for Britlsh
forces".

- -

From the US decision of 30 April to the Argentine surrender

on 14 June

34, The US decision of 30 April to support Britain was a
turning-point in our fortunes. But it did not put an end

to negotiations or to America's part in them. On the
contrary, the US Government's desire to bring off a peaceful
settlement grew with the prospect of battle. Others too, the
Peruvians, the Secretary General of the UN, and the Brazillans
entered the diplomatic fray. :
35. When you visited Washington a second time on 1-2 May,
following a rough debate in the House of Commons, and
coinciding with the first Vulcan attack on Port Stanley
airfield, Mr Halg outlined a seven-point plan that had
originated, he sald, in a Peruvian initiative. This inclucded:
the setting up of a supervisory contact group comprising

two Latin American countries, the FRG and the USA; and the
laying down of a time‘limit - 30 April 1983 - by which a
definiﬁive agreement for the future of the Islands would

have to be reached. .

36. While the Prime Minister, you and other Ministers

were considering this plan in London, Mr Halg was expressing

/great
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great concern to me about
(a) +the latest Peruvian attitude after the sinking of
the Belgrano on 3 May,
(b) the deterioration in US and Western opinion thaé

he feared would be likely to occur if Britaln

took further military action, and . -

the need for London to show an initiative in favour

of peace by proposing a ceasefire to be followed by

implementation of the seven-point plan.
He followed this up by asking me to transmit to London the
text of his seven-point plan and the draft of a ceasefire
statement to be made by HMG. It was the moment, he urged,
for a magnanimous diplomatic move to be made by HMG when
they had demonstrated their military dominance.
37. Mr Haig was extremely worked-up about the consequences
of a prolongation of the fighting. He feared that we might
ook increasingly to the USA for support and that 1f opinion
came to believe that we had missed the opportunity of peace,
i1t would be difficult for the USA to stay in the supportive
position that they had now adopted.
38. London replied to the US seven-point plan with certain
amendments which I discussed with Mr Haig. He sald that they

would be rejected out of hand by Argentina. After a three-hour

session Mr Haig produced 2 new set of points asklng me to

transmit them to London.
39, HMG accepted these latest proposals, though they

presented considerable difficulties. The text was transmitted

/by the
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by the US Government to the Peruvians for onward transmissicn
to Argentina, who turned them down. The Argentine aim at
this stage was to move to the UN. HMG let the Secretary
General know that they ¢ould go along with his ideas for ?
framework, which, to be sure, were similar to those of the
US/Peruvian plan.

40. Mr Haig's mood now changed. He told me on 7 May that

hr was full of admiration for the diplomatic stance HMG was

now taking. He hoped "faint hearts" were not gaining ground
in the UK. Two days later, however, he was argulng that
Britain, while having to maintain maximum military pressure
on the Falkland Islands, should avoid attacks on the mainland
- a warning that we were to be given frequently in the days
ahead.

41. He left the next day for a European tour. No sooner

was he out of the country than Mrs Kirkpatrick got into the
act. She managed to convince President Reagan that the
Argentinians were ready to be forthcoming and persuaded him
to telephone the Prime Minister, which he did on 13 May.

In deciding to telephone Mrs Thatcher, President Reagan had
also been influenced by a conversation he had just had with
President Figueiredo of Brazil, who had expressed a readiness
to do whatever he could to bring about a peaceful settlement.
Discussing this telephone talk with Judge Clark afterwards,
he told me how concerned President Reagan was about the
worsening Falkland Islands situation. The US had already

impaired its relations with the Latin American countries.

/There
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There would be serious problems in the Alliance if hostilitiles
becgme intensified and if the;e were feelings in the UK

that the US was not being supportive enough.

42. I will not relate here, because Sir Anthony Parsons *

has done so in his despatch, the Secretary General's efforts

during these weeks to promote a settlement and the US

attitude towards them. Mr Halg was always somewhat suspicilous
of Mr Perez de Cuellar and was afraid that his activities
would cut across what he was doing; 1t looked at times as
though he was a2 little afraid of Mr Perez de Cuellar succeéding
where he had failed, and this translated itself into private
entreaties that we should not be more flexible with the
Secretary General than we had been with him. But when his
seven-point plan collapsed through Argentine intransigence

he was resigned to the stream of negotiaticns continuing

in New York.

43, Following a weekend of consultations at Chequers

attended by Sir Anthony Parsons and myself, a British plan

was submitted to the Secretary General of the UN on 17 May

and published on the 20th. The main features of this

British proposal were:

1. the mutual and balanced withdrawal of forces,

2. the appointment of a UN Administrator to administer
the Islands, in consultation with the elected
representatives of the Islanders, |
negotiations between Britain and Argentina on

the future of the Islands.
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44, The Argentine response to this proposal was to seek
changes designed to pre-judge the outcome of the negotiations,
so that they would lead inexorably to Argentine sovereighty
and control, to set aside the elected representatives of

the islanders, and to enable the Argentine authorities to

flood the Islands with Apgqntinians. They were not prepared

to accept language or arrangements which would ensure that

t$e outcome of negotiations would not be pre-judged and

that the wishes of the islanders would be respected. They
were still prevaricating in order to consolidate thelr |
position on the Islands. Although the Argentline response

to the British proposals was negative, Mr Halg and Judge

Clark were still convinced that this was not the end of

the negotiating road. Mr Halg expressed to me on 21 May,
after our forces had landed on the Falklands, and on several
occasions in the next day or two how anxious he was about

the military outcome, his hope that the British would

seize the first moment of military success to show a readiness
to negotiate, his fears, otherwilse, about the long—-term
bitterness in Latin America, and the opportunity that he

saw for the Soviets to increase their influence there.

45. On Saturday evening, 22 May, he came to see me privately
at the Embassy to undefline the concern of the US Admiqistratic:
at likely developments: at the continued will to fight and
the spirit of revanchism that would prevall in Buenos Alres
whatever the government in powerl unless this could be

headed off by British readiness to negotiate now rather than

/to pursue
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to pursue the conflict to a bitter conclusion. Halg reinforced
these fears by a dire prediction of what Congress was about

to do in calling for a ceasefire. The New York Times,
1ncidenta11y, had that morning published defeatist stories
based on official briefing.

46. oOn 24 May mp Halg suggested to me a poésible plan
involving a éeasefire and éithdrawal, a US/Brazilian interim
administration (President Figueiredo had made a considerable
impact on Washington thinking) and discussions about the
future without prior commitment. All this reflected Mpr ﬁaig's
anxlety about the impending meeting of the Rio Treaty which,
he foresaw, would 1solate the USA from its hemispheric
neighbours. I told Mr Hailg immediately, without reference

to London, that these ideas would be unacceptable there in
current circumstances. Latep the séme day Mr Haig, in another
change of mood, telephoned to Say that the President supported
Britain solidly.

47. In order to try to keep the idea of a negotiation

going, Mr Haig sent you a further message saying that the

USA would be prepared to provide a battalion to ensure no
violation of any interim agreement on the Falklands. He

asked HMG to consider a4 scheme submitted by Brazil in New

York for withdrawal and an interim administration, with the
addition, so Mr Haig suggestéd, of a US/Brazilian peace-
keeping force. He followed this up with a pléa to London

that when we had reached the highest point of military

pPressure we should offer a magnanimous proposal to bring
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military activity to an end. But by this time British
forces had been engaged in hazardous operations and the
bridgehead had been established at San Carlos. The heaﬁ&
Argentine air attacks marking their national day on 25 Ma§
heightened the tension in Washington almost_ as acutely as

in London. You replied to Mr Haig that people in Britain
would no longer accept the idea of mutual withdrawal or an
interim administration. A few days later I rubbed this

home on instructions from the Prime Minister and you, saying
that we were determined to repossess the Falklands, reinstate
British administration and only thereafter consider future
developments, though we acknowledged the desirability
eventually to have some kind of international security
arrangement involving the Americans.

48. Mr Haig was worried by the way the British political

attitude seemed to be hardening paril passu with the progress

in British military operations. He was greatly concerned
about the impact of this on Latin America; and 1t 1s relevant
to record that the Rio Treaty signatories had just been
meeting in Washington and, as Mr Halg had foreseen, had

delivered a venomous attack on the US calling upon them to

cease supporting Britain. Mr Haig had made a stout speech to

the meeting blaming Argentina and contesting the invocation of
the Rio Treaty for the defence of aggression by one of its own
members.

49, It was in this context that Mr Haig thereupon floated

the idea of creating an international umbrella organisation

/to consider
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to consider the ultimate status of the Islangs. Shortly
afuerharas he formulated this in a new Plan of 29 May in

which the umbrella idea became crystallised in another

contact group comprising the UK, the USA, Brazil ang Argentinz.
It was an essential feature of this fresh USA initiative

that 1t should be launched before the final defent of the
Argentine forces. R -

SP. This mood of anxlety in Washington was reflected in the
decision taken by the President to telephone the Prime Minister
again. This call took place on 31 May. Mr Reagan's purpﬁse
Seemed to be not only to register concern about Latin

American opinion but to float the idea of yet another US

beace initiative. The Prime Ministep was emphatic in response.
She followed it by telephoning me to ask me to see Judge Clark
at the White House ang ensure that the President and he
understood the British attitude. Thereupon, on 1 June I
called on Judge Clark and made clear, at the Prime Minister's
request, that Britain, having negotiated in good faith for

weeks, during which time the Argentinians showed no sign

of being ready to talk business, were not prepared now,

countries from Latin America.

51. I recall héﬁ at one moment in this machine-gun exchange
of ideas Mr Halg sought to recrult Winston Churchill for

the cause of flexibility. He spoke of Churchill's call

for magnanimity, to which I rejoined that Churchill had

/not
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not talked of magnanimity until after victory had been
ach}eved. But nothing assuaged fhe American concern at

this stage - that is to say at the end of May and the
beginning of June - about the dire consequences that would
flow from overwhelming military defeat inflicted on the
Argentinians. This sentiment was reflected in a hand-
wringing editorial in the Qashington Post, an dnfailing
barometer of defeatist pressure. I conveyed to London as best
I could the evidence of a growing gap between the resolute
attitude in London and the mood in Washington favouring a soft
line by us towards Argentina.

52. The prospect of a bloody battle for Port Stanley
heightened tension at the UN where the Latinos managed to

get a resolution introduced into the Securlty Council calling
for an immediatelceasefire and withdrawgl - an event that
will be remembered only for the light it cast on the
appalling relations between Mrs Kirkpatrick and Mr Haig.

53. The President and Mr Halg left Washington on 2 June

for a European tour. With Summit and bilateral meetings
there, and the Israel invasion of the Lebanon hitting the
headlines, the diplomatic spotlight was momentarily off the
Falklands where British forces were advancing for an assault
on Port Stanley. Contrary to US fears of a major battle,
this was avoided and the Argentine forces on the Islands
surrendered on 14 June. That was the end of-the ding-dong
negotiating battle in Washingtoﬁ.

/The Significance ..
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The Significance of the Negotiations seen in Retrospect and

Mr Haig's part in them

54, Undeniably, the ceaseless diplomatic efforts that the
US had been making since early April had not achleved thelr
main purpose, which was to bring about a settlement that
avoided bloodshed and humiliation for eithef side. But
from the British angle, thése prolonged negotia%ions broug%t
advantages. During the considerable time that elapsed
between the despatch of the task force from the UK and its
readiness to repossess the Islands, there was a need for
something to fill the diplomatic vacuum. Anything would
have been better than further interventions by the UN.
There were positive advantages in Mr Halg's to-ings and
fro-ings and frequent proposals. Without them, Argentine
intransigence would not have been exposed, and without this
exposure the US decision to give Britain support would

probably not have come when it did or been so categorical.

Mr Halg's insistence on even-handedness in public between

London and Buenos Aires so long as he thought he could

bring off a negotiated settlement was exasperating to the

UK; it seemed at times too to conflict with the practical
support the USA were providing us. Thus his statement on

14 April that "since the onset of the crisis, the United
States had not acceded to requests that would go beyohd the
scope of customary patterns of cooperation based on bilateral
agreements" did not reflect the realities of the help the

US were affording. Equally tiresome to London was Mr Haig's

/view

CONFIDENTIAL - ECLIPSE




CONFIDENTIAL - ECLIPSE

-

view that US 1ntérests would best be served by keeping
President Galtieri in power and saving his face. He tended
to believe that just because war would not benefit eithér
side, it should be possible to negotiate peace. As Mr y
Kissinger has pointed out, he was reflecting here a long-held
American tradition: that all international disputes must
inherently be susceptible to peaceful settlement by reasonable
men and women.

55. There was no doubt too, and I sald so several times to
Mr Haig, that he exaggerated the degree of Latin American
solidarity on this issue and the extent of long-term
resentment that would be caused to the USA by support for
Britain.

56. Both Mr Haig and Mr Weinberger made personal efforts to
ensure that we received practical support of a highly
important kind. This 1s described later in the despatch.

Mr Haig saw the crisis as something nearly as crucial to

the US as to the UK and as having a close bearing on the
future of the Atlantic Alliance. He toék us at all times
into his confidence, even when this involved thinking aloud
and revealing how changeable were his moods and 1deas.

Elsewhere I have described how suspicious Mr Halg 1s by

nature: a ready victim for any Iago. But I am sure that

he came to trust us completely: and I believe that we
benefited from this, though strong nerves were needed at
times to cope with it. Just to glve you some idea of the
extent to which Mr Haig consulted us from the beginning to

/the end
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the end of this crisis, I should record that I had innumerable
meetings with him, often alone, and practlcally ﬁo day went

by Qithout him telephoning me, frequently several times.

57. The obvious question arises how far US policy might kave
been different if Mr Haig had not been Secretary of State, or
to put it another way, whether he was on baiance helpful or
harmful to British interesés. p

58. As I have already indicated, there were obvious advantages
in having the US Government busy in negotiation during the long
interval between Argentinian aggression and our return to fhe
Islands; but it does not follow from this that Mr Halg's methods
were the most effective way of filling the negotlating vacuum
or were the most favourable from our point of view. Although
he dominated the US negotiating scene he never succeeded in
eliminating everyone from the wings where indeed there were
plenty of people eager to get on to the stage and playla
different role. The influence of these pro-Latinos may well
have encouraged the Argentinians in their Intransigence which
was obviously damaging to us. Glven the American .system of
government it would not have been possible on this 1ssue,

or indeed on any other, to have had one clear-cut and declsive
fount of policy.

59. From our point of view, Mr Halg, as many people in London
k;ow, and as will be apparent from the above narrative, was
variable in mood and erratic in Judgement. The President did
not give a strong lead and allowéd the frictions in the
decision-making process to continue. I am sure, though, that
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Mr Halg's was the decisive influence throughout: he wanted us

to win and would have been horrified if the Argentinians had

got away with i1t. He did, it is true, persuade us to accept
ideas we did not 1like, but he never tried to get us to gos
against our judgement of our fundamental interests. He handled
many turning points in a way that was beneficial to us and the
value of this can only be realised if it is kept firmly in mind
tbat US support was not something that could ever have been
tgken for granted.
60. Now that Mr Haig has resigned, I have found myself
wondering what the bearing was of the whole affair on him
personally. Of course, if he had succeeded 1%t would have
been regarded as
a personal triumph a la Kissinger; hils prestige would have been
boosted and he might have begun to look indispensible, somethirz
that would have discomfited his many enemlies in high places.
Success, too, might have assuaged the tension within him and
compensated for the gfeat physical stress he had undergone.
The failure of the negotiation was undoubtedly a set-back to
him, both to his standing as Secretary of State and to his
inner peace of mind. On the day he left the State Department
he confided to his senior staff that one of his greatest regrets
on leaving office was that he had been unable to bring about a
peaceful settlement of the Falklands crisis. |
61. My overall conclusions about the negotlating phase of
the Falklands crisis are as follows:

(a) had the Argentinians accepted any of the many

/proposals
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proposals offered them, they would have secured
something and would have been much better off

than they were by choosing the alternative outcome
of military confrontation leading to surrender;:

The prolonged negotiations caused HMG difficulties
but they were on balance beneficial, because

The US decision %o come down on the épitish sidé

and support us was not something that was inevitable
or could have been taken for granted. It might not
have happened without US exasperation with Argeﬁtine
intransigence.

The US decision to support us and the way they did
so owed a lot to Mr Haig, though it is doubtful
whether the outcome did him much good personally;
Media, Congressional and public opinion exercised

an important influence, as I will now describe.

THE MEDIA, CONGRESS AND THE PUBLIC

62. For an issue not directly involving US territory or
nationals, the Falklands crisis attracted unprecedented us
media interest. From the Argentine invasion to the surrender
at Port Stanley it was front page news, and the lead story for
TV, every day. The level of interest, the novelty of the
issue, and the impossibility of securing on-the-spot coverage
combined to produce an exceptional demand for information

on HMG's policies and on daily,.even hourly developments.

63. Although from the start there was sympathy for our

cause in the media, Congress and the public, this was not

/universal
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universal and there was much wavering. As I have already
indicated, there was a tendency early on to regard the

whole thing as some sort of opera bouffe. Then emerged the
L

widespread feeling that a small population so far away
could.surely not be worth the risk of war, particularly one
between two of the USA's allles. Lord Carrington's
rFsignation, which‘a considerable number of people confessed
to me they could not understand, encouraged speculation '
here about divisions on policy within the British Government.
Doubts began to be expressed by military experts, on
television and in the press, about our capability to mount

a successful military operation in the South Atlantilc.

64, It seemed essential to launch a public relations effort
throughout the USA to get at the US press, radio and
television. Clearly in a matter of this kind affecting
American interests, the US Government would be influenced

in their decisions by public opinion.

65. We therefore set in hand a major campalgn, conducted
throughout the country by the Embassy, BIS New York and the
Consulates General. Its specific aims were:

(a) to persuade the Americans that this was an 1ssue
of principle bearing upon them directly; aggression
had occured and if the Argentinians were able to
get away with it this could encourage lnstability
in the whole Américan\hemisphere, riddled, as it
was, with territorial claims;

to answer the question why we were prepared to
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go to such 1eﬁgths for less thanIE,OOO people at the
other end of the world, by polnting out how strongly
the Americans had felt about 52 hostages in Iran,
and that what was at stake was whether, in the l
American hemisphere, differences were golng to
be settled by force, or whether the principle of-
self-determination, which the USA had pioneered,
was going to prevall;
to rebut the idea that it was a colonial issue,
and to remind the Americans that since the end
of World War Two we had given a quarter of the
world's population independence, but had not
transferred a single person against their will
to a third power, least of all to a military
dictatorship;
to remind them of the implications for the Alllance;
to give a warning of the advantages the Soviets
could derive from an Argentine victory to which
they might well claim they had contributed;
to make it clear that the UK had the will and
abllity to restore British administration of
the Islands, by force if necessary.
66.- We concentrated a lot of effort on television. I gave
more than 60 interviews, appearing frequently on programmes
seen ail over the USA, such as the morning news networks,
the McNeil-Lehrer show, ABC's Nightline and the Sunday

morning news magazines. As regards radio, BIS New York
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placed 120 items with the major radio networks, covering

T,ObO stations.

67. Sympathy and public support could at no stage be assumed.
As the prospect of a bloody battle became more likely, the
uncertainties in public opinion tended to increase. The
subject therefore required constant attention and our
campaign continued throughout the T4 days.

68. We levelled a particular campaign at Capitol Hill. In
the immediate aftermath of the invasion, I wrote to all
members of the House Foreign Affairs and Senate Foreign
Relations Committees, as well as the House and Senate
leadership (some sixty Members of Congress in all) setting
out our case. At the same time, I called on the 24 leading
members of the House and Senate to brief them on our position
and secure their support. The initial calls were made

Just before the Easter recess and were followed by other
calls immediately after the recess finished. In additionm,
I and Embassy staff were in daily touch either with Members
of Congress, particularly Committee Chairmen, or their
staffs. We encouraged those members of the House and
Senate who were keen to put down Resolutions in our support
to do so and gave informal advice on the drafting.

69. The Administration was initially reluctant to see
Congress express a strong view on the Falklands for fear
that this would cut across their own efforts to negotiate a
_peaceful settlement to the dispute. In fact, the growing
strength of feeling in Congress undoubtedly influenced the

/Administration
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Administration in its decision to come down on our side.
The Senate adopted a Resolution supporting Britain on 23
April (the day before the Administration announced its .
decision to support us actively). The House of Representatives
adopted a similar Resolution a few days later.
-70. We continued to explain our case dally to Members of -

Congress to correct misapprehensions and to ensure that

Members of Congress understood at each stage the steps we

were obliged to take. When the British Government published

its proposals for a peaceful settlement on 20 May, I wrote
again to all the key Members of Congress Sending them the
text of our proposals and explaining the reasons why a
negotiated settlement had proved impossible. One of the
notable features of Congressional support was the extent

to which those who are often critical of us over Northern
Ireland eg. Senators Kennedy and Moynihan and Speaker

O'Neill publicly backed us on the Falklands.

71. British readers may wonder whether such blatant
canvassing of Congress might not have beén counter-productive

as it would have been mutatis mutandis with the House of

Commons. But it is one of the facts of American public

1ife that make it so different from ours, that no resentment
is aroused there if foreigners try to sell their diplomatic
wares, exert pressure, and indeed interfere in their
deliberations. On the contrary\any inhibition to do so

would be regarded as a sign of lack of conviction.

/US SUPPORT

CONFIDENTIAL - ECLIPSE

- —_— e e




US SUPPORT

NEs Tk think it is worth desscribing what in practice the
offer of US support meant to us. Apart from the obvious
political implications, it had far-reaching practical
benefits, as follows:

(a) Facilities on Ascension Island

The use of the Ué Air Force Base on Egcension
Island was of course of crucial importance to our
whole operation. The Americans could not have
denied us the use of this base without infringiné
the terms of the agreement under which 1t had been
set up. But nothing in the agreement bound them to
be as cooperative as they were over the use of the
base. They supplied additional accommodation and
water purification plants and made available at
short notice and as a result of diversion from theilr
own supplies 12.5 million gallons of aviation fuel
without which the build-up, surveillance, alr-drop
and bombing missions supported by tanker aircraft
into the South Atlantic could not have taken place.

Military Ecuipment

The Americans supplied a wealth of important
equipment: for instance, the latest version of the
Sidewinder air-to-air missile, vital for the Harrlers;
Harpoon and Shrike missiles; 4,700 tons of airfield
matting for the rapid reconstruction of Port Stanley
airport; helicopter engines, submarine detectlion

/devices,
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devices, and many other important items of equipment.

The Stinger missile, used for the first time in
combat, was particularly effective. These suﬁplies
were pald for. Many major items of equipment )
were supplied from the US inventory, often at 24
hours' notice; flexibility was shown over the
financial arrangements, and US readiness to meet
requests as quickly and helpfully as possible

was remarkable. Prior to 30 April some of the
officials and military personnel with whom we

had dealings showed signs of nervousness. But
after that date all reservations disappeared,

and those concerned worked night and day processing
our requests. Some decisions were taken at the
highest level to supply us with equipment out of
existing stocks at the expense of US operatlonal
requirements. I was in frequent touch with Mr
Weinberger, and on the few occaslons Pentagon
officizls queried our requests, he over-ruled
them. These equipment supplles were supplemented
by technical advice on such matters as fitting
missiles to aircraft in service in the South
Atlantice, eiectronic cqunter—measures, dealing
with unexploded bombs in frigates and scattered
mines left by the Argentlinlans.

.

Communications

Communications between the task force and the UK

/were
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were greatly facilitated by the provision of

additional channels on US communications satellites.

Inevitably some of the channels made avallable to us
¢

in this way were lost to the Americans. Our

submarines and other forces could not have operated

in the way they did without the use of US satellite

communications, enabling us to bottle up the

Argentine fleet and maintain the essential secure

command and control links for the task force.

Intelligence

American help in this area was significantly in
excess of "customary cooperation in accordance

with long-standing agreements" which was how the
Americans described publicly the nature of these
links. The Americans made real sacrifices on our
behalf; and what they provided made an important
contribution to the conduct of operations. Thelr
readiness to help stemmed in part from an automatic
instinct but also was the product of the intelligencs
relationship which had been nurtured since the SeconZ
World War. If the Argentines hoped that thelr supgctT
for US covert activities in Central America would
influence US policy in their favour in this
intelligence area, they were totally disappointed.
Economic .

Up to 30 April, the Americans held back from the
economic sanctions imposed by our European and old

/Commonwealth
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Commonwealth allies. Thereafter they imposed limited

sancticns (suspension of credits etc) which had a

limited economic effect, but served as a demonstration
L

of overall support.

Denial of Military Ecuipment to Argentina

Initially, the Americans sought to restrict the -

supply of military equipment to Argentina by

stepping up the implementation of the restrictions
which had been imposed, on human rights grounds,'
in 1978. We were able to demonstrate that there
were important loopholes in the exlsting embargo.
The Administration closed these as quickly and
effectively as it could. After 30 April all
military exports to Argentina were suspended and
certification of Argentine eligibility for military
sales was withheld. In addition, the Americans
made representations in support of our cwn approaches
to third governments 1nvolved in the supply of
military equipment to Argentina.

73. Some measure of the significance of US support for

Britain over the Falklands is provided by:

(1) the resentment it caused the Argentinians;
(11) an assessment of what would have happened
without it; and
(111) <the precedent of Suez.’
I am speaking here, of course, of political as well as
materiel support. It would be going too far to say that
/had
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had the US remained on the side-lines and not given us the
help they did, we could not have repossessed the Island;.
But such a US stance would have heartened the Argentinian?
and exacerbated our problems. e would have taken longer to
accomplish the task and suffered greater losses; there
would have been considerable damage to US/UK relations and
to the Alliance generally.

THE IMPORTANCE OF THE ISSUE FOR US/UK RELATIONS

74. The Falklands crisis was the most important single
test of US/UK relations certalnly since Suez and possibly
since the end.of World War Two; and, unlike Suez, the
relationship was of great benefit to us in the crisis and
has been enhanced by 1it.

The Way the Closeness of Relations Helped

75. The way in which the relationship helped us over the

Falklands i1llustrates some of its main features:

(a) (1) The US has special relationships with many
countries (eg. FRG, Israel, France); what distin-
gulishes the British connection now, though 1t
has not always been so, and perhaps only for the
past 40 years, is collaboration on defence,
including nuclear weapons technology, equipment,
intelligence, ccmunications, and inter-service
exchanges. Some 1dea of the scale of this
ihtermingling is shown by the fact that at present
we have 295 officers and NCOs on lliaison, exchanges
or projects with the US forces and industry in

/the US.
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the US. It is a two-way relationship, particularly
in weapon-research and development.

(11) In the 40-year timescale I am speaking of, the
degree of nuclear weapons cooperation has been t

a sensitive barometer of the relationship: and

at the present time, with the Trident. project

agreed to and the US Government attaching great

importance to Britain as a continuing nuclear

partner, the barometer is reading high. The

Americans are well aware that the future of the

Trident programme will turn on the next electlon
in Britain; but few of them find it concelvable
that we should choose to abandon nuclear weapons
at a2 time when others - including Argentina -
seem so clearly bent on acquiring them.

(111) This defence connection brought us direct
and immediate advantage as soon as the Falklands
erisis broke. In the previous section of this
despatch I have given some account of the specifilc
support given. We would not have got 1t 1n the
way we did without that established relationship.
The same, of course, applies to the intelligence
relationship.

(1) The other main attribute of the relationship
has been the common cultural, demographic and
democratic foundation. This subject, a staple of

all transatlantic gatherings, has been talked to

/death;
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death; but it only needs an issue to arise affecting
the interests and sentiments of the two countries,
as 1t did over the Falklands, for 1t to show 1t?
vitality.

(11) Unlike the Israelis or the Irish or the Greeks,
or many other nationalities, there 1s-no organised
British lobby in the United States. We have nothirg,
for instance, to match The Friends of Ireland, a
bi-partisan group of Senators and Representatives

on the Hill. But whenever I have grumbled about
this to my diplomatic colleagues, they have

found it laughable, asserting that the whole

country 1s our lobby except for a few dissidents;
somewhat on a par with Mrs Kirkpatrick's complaint
that the State Department are "Brits in American
clothing”".

(1ii) There have been major changes since the War
in the ethnic composition of the American

population which have had an important impact on
national attitudes. The recent influx of Hispanic
people has rivalled the great European migrations

of the nineteenth century. The Hispanic population
of America has almost doubled in a decade (illegal
immigrants alone totalling some 10 million) and
could overtake blacks .as the largest minority

group by the end of the century. The East coast
Establishment no longer runs the country. Texans

/and
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and Californians, who are very consclous of the
USA as a Pacific power and of Mexlco and Central
America to the South, wield great influence. -
But the basic identity of the country remains a;
Anglo-Saxon one, with the Engllish language and
Anglo-Saxon traditions continuing to provide the
pattern to which recent arrivals seek to conform,
and our relations with those responsible for the
conduct of public affairs have remalned just as
close as in the past. In fact, oddly enough, 1t
is the Wasps of the Eastern seaboard, such as
Franklin D Roosevelt and John Foster Dulles
rather than the Kissingers or Brzezinskils, who
have tended to scoff at the emotional baggage of
the special relationship, seeing in it an impediment
to the hard calculation of America's interest.
~(1v) This does not mean that an anti-Britlsh seam
does not run through American life, made up of many
elements. But when the crunch comes, as it did
over the Falklands, there is bedrock to fall back
upon. An example came my way when I was talking at
the height of the crisis to a member of the Senate
Foreign Relations Committee. In response to my view
that the issue was about aggression, and whether 1t
should be tolerated in the Western hemisphere, the
Senator demurred. Do you think, he asked
rhetorically, that if the Falkland Islands had
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belonged to Brazil rather than to you, and Argentina
had invaded them, the US would have reacted in the
way they have done? It 1s because you are Brit}sh,
with all that that means in this country, that we
have supported you.

The Effect of the Falklands Outcome on the Relationship

76. If you look at the other side of the coln and see what
the Falklands outcome has done to the relationship between
the two countries, the conclusion may look slightly different
from opposite sides of the Atlantic. Seen from Britailn,
there may be doubts about the US role, at least in the

early stages. Their initial impartiality was regarded by
many in Britain as weak, and by some as disloyal to an

ally. Their obsessive concern with Latin American
relationships and thelr apparent readiness to put these ahead
of, or at least on a par with, their European relationships,
seemed incomprehensible to many at home. The twilsts and
turns of US policy through the crisis left more than a
shadow on the reputation of the Reagan Administration and
brought more sharply home than anything else had done that

in terms of coherence in foreign policy there was little to
choose between it and its predecessor. These impressions
were particularly strong among those who could not know

about the substantial materiel help the Americans had been
giving us behind the scenes from the outset.

77. The crisis also gave emphasis to the diffuse US decision-
making process: the post-Vietnam-Watergate weakening of
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ECLIPSE

the executive; and the struggle for influence between the
different branches of the executive. I doubt whether there
is going to be any early remedy for this; there is certainly
no easy prescription for foreign governments in dealing :
with 1t. But let us not depress ourselves into thinking
that we are facing a new problem. I have come &across a
report from the US Embassy in London of 7 January 1950,

that according to the US Archives was read with great
interest by President Truman, containing the following as
one of the main causes for the strain in US/UK relations:
"The British have never really understood how policy 1is
arrived at in US, and are often disconcerted by the confusion
which appears to surround American foreign policy making.
They are therefore often unduly worried ...".

78. Judged from this side of the Atlantic, the outcome was
favourable to our interests. TFor a long time Britain has
been identified with decline in the American press and in
the mind's eye of many people here - a deterioration not
just in industrial output but in national will, in the
essential dash and doggedness that were regarded by Americans
as a hallmark of the British character. Well, the Falklands
have corrected that. They have shown that we are prepared
to stand up for our rights and for certain beliefs, even

at the risk of human life; and that we have the will and

professionalism needed for success. In the early da&s of

the operation so many wiseacres here were expressing, in

private and public, advice as grave as 1t was expert,

/about
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about the hazards of undertaking a reoccupation of the
Islands. The results demonstrated how they had underest?mated
contemporary Britain. This will have left a mark.
79. I should interject here that if we are to derive due
benefit from the successful outcomé, we must as soon as
possible and in the fulles?t manner let the US authorities
have an account of the lessons of the whole military
operation - to include everything from command and control,
tactics, communications and logistics to weapons performance.
This will be to our interest, not simply for the increased
sales of military equipment that may follow, but in terms
of the overall defence connectlion.
80. On our role as a defence partner, which, as I have
suggested, 1s the rock upon which the relationship is
founded, the Falklands outcome has made a particular impact.
The Americans do not take naturally to the role of world
policeman and were distressed when we ceased to be alongside
them in this task. As Henry Kissinger said in hls recent
lecture in Chatham House:
"It is beyond the psychological resources of the United
States - not only the physical - to be the sole or even
the principal centre of initiative and responsibility
in the non-Communist :-orld. This is one reason why
I always favored the independent British and French
nuclear deterrents.)" 3
81. I do not want to suggest that through our Falklands
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operation the Americans hope that we are showlng a readlness
to play a world role once again but in tﬁeir eyes there 1s

a good deal that can be done "out of area" that does not
necesarily imply a full global responsibility. They belléve
that by our successful operation 8,000 miles away from the
home base we have shown a capability that is both relevant
to their own tasks with thé Rapid Deployment F&fce and to‘

the partnership between us for the defence of Western security.

The Future

82. The Falklands have given a fillip to our relations.

How long it lasts will depend on_what happens in many areas,

and in particular on how the current trans-Atlantic tensions

are handled on both sides.- Differences of view and of

interest on major economic issues, eg. steel, economic relations
with the Soviet bloc and protectlonism, could affect the galns
from the Falklands. We have also to bear in mind the

unequal balance and the changing pattern, economic and
political, as between us and the USA.

83. The Americans are little aware of these changes. Few
realise that in the past 25 years there has been a complete
reversal in the relative economic strength of the USA and the
Ten. In 1955 the ten countrles that now make up the Community
had a gross domestic product that was only about half that

of the USA; by 1980 it was already larger. Moreover - 2
significant pointer to the future development.of thelr
respective economic strength - &he Ten already invest more
than the United States, and they are increasing thelr
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investment at a faster rate. Above all, the USA is now much
more dependent on forelgn trade than even a decade ago. Todzay
about one Job in eight in the USA depends on exports: éxports
of zgricultural products and raw materials have 1ncreased‘six
times in the last ten years. In the same period American

seté abroad have increased five times. Even those Americans

-

that understand these trends have not yet fully thought through

t%e implications that they will have for the future of the

Transatlantic relationship.

84. Within this broad picture, our own national wealth, though
it has grown, is now less than that of France and of the
Federal German Republic. This weakness, though it is only
comparative, has a bearing on the USA's attitude to us as an
ally. But we still have far larger direct investments 1n the
USA than any of our trading partners; and we now provide the
Americans with nearly 10% of their crude oil imports. 1In
addition we spend as much on defence as any other of America's
allies (except perhaps the Germans) and decidedly more in
relation to our national wealth. These ére positive assets

to balance the others.

CONCLUSION

85. From my two tours in Washington, spread over 35 years,
and from the intense experience of the Falklands crisis, I

am convinced that there is something particular about our
relationship that transcends matters of immediate economic
and military concern. This does not mean that we do not

have conflicts of interests or disputes. But it 1s not
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1ike dzaling with any other foreign power. We can and
do discuss problems without fear of offence and in a spirit
that seeks compromise rather than confrontation. There 1s

nothing to match it in our relations with any other major *

country. Membership of the EC has not weakened our bilateral

nolitical relationship with the USA, whatever the initial

-

fears, but it does mean that we are members of a club that

hds even more economic weight than the USA. I am in no

doubt about the compulsion of our membership of the European
Community; but now, after three years in Washington, 1 do

not consider, any more than I did before, that 1t is
incompatible with our close billateral relations with the USA.
86. I am sending copies of this despatch (without enclosures)
to the Home Secretary, the Secretary of State for Defence,

the Chief of the Defence Staff, the Secretary of the Cabinet,
and Her Majesty's Representatives at all EC posts, UKMis

New York and UKDel NATO.

I have the honour to be,
Sirp,
Your obedient Servant

Slietolast fredtrsvn_.

Nicholas Henderson
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